






MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 17, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

The Mayor and City Council for the City of St. Marys, Georgia met for its regular City Council 

session on Monday, March 17, 2014 in the Council Chamber at City Hall. 

 

PRESENT WERE:  Mayor John F. Morrissey 

  Councilmember Sam Colville 

  Councilmember Jim Gant 

  Councilmember Robert L. Nutter 

  Councilmember Dave Reilly 

  Councilmember Nancy Stasinis 

  Councilmember Linda P. Williams 

 

CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT:       Robert Horton, Interim City Manager 

      Jennifer Brown, Finance Director 

  Donna Folsom, Human Resources Director 

  Bobby Marr, Public Works Director 

  Roger Weaver, Planning Director 

  Timothy Hatch, Chief of Police 

     

CALL TO ORDER:  

Mayor Morrissey called the City Council Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Councilmember Jim 

Gant gave the invocation.  Mayor Morrissey led the audience in the pledge of allegiance.  

Council roll call indicated a quorum of Council members present for the meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  March 3, 2014 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilmember Nutter moved to approve the March 3, 2014 Regular City Council meeting 

minutes.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion. 
 

March 3, 2014 Executive Session City Council Meeting Minutes 

Councilmember Nutter moved to approve the March 3, 2014 Executive Session City Council 

meeting minutes.  Councilmember Colville seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in 

favor of the motion. 
 

PRESENTATIONS: 

GEORGIA POWER:  Joel Hanner (Added) 

Joel Hanner presented Mayor Morrissey with a franchise check for $657,469.37 and stated 

Georgia Power is proud to be a community citizen and serve the residents of St. Marys.  
 

2014 EARTH HOUR JOINT PROCLAMATION:  Mayor Morrissey 

Mayor Morrissey read an excerpt from the 2014 Earth Hour Joint Proclamation (St. Marys, 

Kingsland, Woodbine and Camden County) declaring Earth Hour 2014 for March 29, 2014 

beginning at 8:30 p.m. for one hour.  Councilmember Nutter encouraged residents in Camden 



MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 2 

County to enjoy a candlelight dinner in downtown St. Marys.  Councilmember Stasinis 

mentioned that approximately 73% of residents in St. Marys participate in recycling and thanked 

them for their efforts to support the environment. 
 

2014 NATIONAL CRIME VICTIM’S RIGHTS WEEK PROCLAMATION:  Mayor Morrissey (Added) 

Mayor Morrissey read an excerpt from the 2014 National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 

Proclamation scheduled for April 6 – 12, 2014.  Mayor Morrissey stated improvements can be 

made with community participation.      
 

2014 GEORGIA CITIES WEEK PROCLAMATION:  Mayor Morrissey 

Mayor Morrissey read the 2014 Georgia Cities Week Proclamation scheduled for April 13-19, 

2014.  Mayor Morrissey encouraged citizens to participate in the planned activities. 
 

CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  Councilmember Dave Reilly (Added) 

Councilmember Reilly read an excerpt from a thank you note regarding the excellent job the St. 

Marys Fire Department did in assisting residents of St. Marys in an emergency situation.  
 

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS (VACANCY): 

Library Board (James Caskey) 

Mayor Morrissey announced an upcoming vacancy on the Library Board.   
 

BOARD APPOINTMENTS (VACANCY):   

1. Camden County Board of Education-Sex Education Instructional Material Review 

Committee (Reeney Adams) 

Councilmember Stasinis made a motion to appoint Karen Preble to the Camden County Board of 

Education-Sex Education Instructional Material Review Committee.  Councilmember Reilly 

seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
  
2. Downtown Development Authority (Jerry Brandon) 

CANDIDATES   FOR      

Joseph Anteo     

Michael J. Dembeck  Councilmember Nutter  

Sean D. Myers    

Michael H. Swain, Jr. 

William R. (Bill) Bruce Councilmembers: Colville, Gant, Reilly & Williams 
  
Councilmember Stasinis abstained from the vote. 
 

Councilmember Reilly made a motion to appoint William R. Bruce to the Downtown 

Development Authority.  Councilmember Colville seconded the motion.  Voting was recorded as 

above.  Councilmember Gant thanked each candidate for volunteering to serve the community 

and mentioned their excellent credentials.  Councilmember Colville asked the candidates to 

continue serving the community and stated the City needs their valuable expertise.  City Council 

thanked the well qualified candidates. 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION ANNUAL REPORT:  Kay Westberry, Chairman 

Ms. Westberry gave Council pictures of proposed signs that could be utilized in Historic areas 

and gave a brief update on much needed Sign Ordinance revisions.  Ms. Westberry briefly 

mentioned the 26 applications the Historic Preservation Commission reviewed over the last year.  

Ms. Westberry thanked Council for their support over the years.  City Council thanked the 



MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 3 

members of the Historic Preservation Commission for dedication and hard work.  A copy of the 

report is attached as part of the official minutes. 
 

SET CONSENT AGENDA (*): 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the consent agenda as New Business B, C, D, 

F, K and N.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion.   
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
Councilmember Gant made a motion to approve the agenda as revised. Councilmember Nutter 

seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

GRANTING AUDIENCE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

Larry White, 102 Sylvia’s Court:  Mr. White referenced comments made by the St. Marys 

Senior Center Director at the Hospital Authority meeting regarding vandalism at the 

Senior Center. 
 

OLD BUSINESS:   
 

A. WASHINGTON OAK & PUMP MEMORIAL:  Roger Weaver  

Request approval for streamlined concept for Washington Oak and Pump 

Councilmember Gant made a motion to approve moving forward with soliciting proposals 

for design cost regarding Washington Oak and Pump.  Councilmember Williams seconded 

the motion.  Councilmember Gant moved for discussion and stated striping and signing 

should be added and if possible extended sidewalks on Orange Hall side of the street.  

Councilmember Nutter mentioned the project was not referenced during SPLOST 

discussions.  Councilmember Nutter mentioned the potential loss of required parking for 

church members with the island.   
 

Councilmember Nutter stated the concept was good but that City funds would be better 

utilized by ensuring other areas like Marsh View Lane have City water and sewer.  Mr. 

Nutter stated that providing City utilities to much needed areas would improve quality of life, 

environment and bring in additional revenue.  Councilmember Nutter suggested reviewing 

the idea once water and sewer had been implemented in other areas in the City.  

Councilmember Gant mentioned the request was for cost estimates and that the City would 

be better able to review the project with the estimated costs.  Voting was recorded as follows: 
 

     FOR     OPPOSED   

         Councilmember Colville              Councilmember Nutter 

         Councilmember Gant              

 Councilmember Reilly 

         Councilmember Stasinis 

         Councilmember Williams 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION SIGN ORDINANCE:  Roger Weaver  

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the revision to Ordinance 46, section 141 

and the creation of a new section 114 in section 62. Councilmember Gant seconded the 

motion.  Councilmember Reilly moved for discussion and stated he would like additional 



MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 4 

advertisement so citizens in the Historic District would have an opportunity to review and 

provide feedback on ordinances that will impact them.  Councilmember Nutter withdrew his 

motion.   
 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion for the Planning Director to advertise and conduct 

another public session and bring the item before Council at the April 7
th

 or April 21
st
 Council 

meeting.  Councilmember Reilly amended the motion to have the Planning Director advertise 

and conduct another public session and bring the item before Council at the first available 

opportunity.  Councilmember Gant seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of 

the motion. 
 

B. SHORT-TERM WORK PROGRAM RESOLUTION (*):  Roger Weaver  

Request approval for revised resolution for Short Term Work Program 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the revised Short Term Work Program 

Resolution.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of 

the motion.   
 

C. TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT GRANT CHANGE ORDER (*): Roger Weaver 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the Transportation Enhancement Grant 

Change Order for additional surveying of the Gateway parcel in the amount of $460.00 to 

Thomas and Hutton Engineering Company.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  

Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

D. SEASONAL MOWING PERSONNEL (PUBLIC WORKS) (*):  Bobby Marr  

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the hiring of two seasonal personnel in 

Public Works to perform right of way maintenance on Highway 40 and Spur 40.  

Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

E. SPECIAL ELECTION CALL REDEVELOPMENT POWERS:   

Councilmember Reilly made a motion to approve the Special Election Call for 

Redevelopment Powers on the May 20, 2014 ballot.  Councilmember Nutter seconded the 

motion.  Councilmember Nutter moved for discussion and stated that no projects were 

presented to Council.  Councilmember Colville stated other areas in the state have utilized 

this tool.  Councilmember Reilly mentioned the various websites available to educate 

citizens.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion.  Mayor Morrissey read the Special 

Election Call regarding Redevelopment Powers. 
 

F. 2
ND

 QUARTER TOWN HALL MEETING (*):  To schedule 2
nd

 Quarter Town Hall meeting for 

Thursday, April 3, 2014 at 6:00 p.m.  

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve the 2
nd

 Quarter Town Hall meeting for 

Thursday, April 3, 2014 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers at City Hall.  Councilmember Reilly 

seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 
 

G. TOURISM FUNDS REQUEST FOR WELCOME CENTER:  Angela Wigger  

Councilmember Stasinis made a motion to approve up to $5,000.00 for improvements to the 

Ward Hernandez Building.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was 

unanimous in favor of the motion.  Councilmember Gant asked for clarification on the space 

needed next door to the Hernandez Building.  Angela Wigger (Tourism Director) mentioned 

the space (approximately 50X50) next to the building is owned by the Methodist Church and 



MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 5 

Tourism would like to utilize it and create an outdoor area.  Mrs. Wigger mentioned that just 

a written note from the church would be sufficient.  Councilmember Colville thanked 

Tourism and Angela for acquiring the radio museum.   
 

H. ST. MARYS HISTORY & MARITIME HERITAGE WALK INTRODUCTION & FUND REQUEST:  

Angela Wigger  
 

The Tourism Director and Cheri Richter gave a brief overview of the project and positive 

impact to the community.  Councilmember Gant made a motion to approve the local match 

of $15,000.00.  Councilmember Williams seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous in 

favor of the motion. 
 

I. ST. MARYS INTRACOASTAL GATEWAY PROPERTY SECURITY MEASURES:   

Robby Horton (Interim City Manager) Moved to City Manager Comments  
 

J. BUILDING CODES:  Robby Horton (Interim City Manager) (Removed) 
 

K. ST. MARYS MUNICIPAL COURT REVISED COURT DATE (*):  Judge Loeffler 

Consideration and approval to change the court date from June 27, 2014 to June 20, 2014 

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve revising the St. Marys Municipal Court 

date from June 27, 2014 to June 20, 2014.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  

Voting was unanimous in favor of the motion. 

 

L. AQUATIC CENTER REPAIRS & PURCHASES:  Jennifer Brown 

Councilmember Colville made a motion to approve $20,147.54 to cover repairs and 

purchases at the St. Marys Aquatic Center.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  

Councilmember Reilly moved for discussion and mentioned the current and FY 2015 Budget 

to possibly include various maintenance items.  Voting was unanimous in favor of the 

motion. 
 

M. BUDGET CALENDAR FY 2015:  Moved to City Manager Comments 
 

N. BUDGET ORDINANCE-LOCAL MAINTENANCE IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG):  Jennifer 

Brown  

Councilmember Nutter made a motion to approve amending the FY 2014 Budget to increase 

the Capital Projects Fund to reflect receipt of Local Maintenance Improvement Grant 

(LMIG) funds awarded by the Georgia Department of Transportation for improvement of 

streets and roadways.  Councilmember Reilly seconded the motion.  Voting was unanimous 

in favor of the motion. 

 

REPORT OF AUTHORITIES, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES:  

A. CITY CALENDAR: City Clerk 

The City Clerk announced the upcoming events, activities and meetings up to April 7, 

2014. 
 

REPORT OF MAYOR 

Mayor Morrissey announced the following meetings and activities for the public:  Sea Grant 

Town Hall meeting on March 19, 2014 (Theater By The Trax), St. Marys River Clean Up on 

March 22, 2014 (Howard Gilman Memorial Park), Recycling Fair on March 29, 2014 (St. Marys 



MINUTES 

City Council Meeting 
March 17, 2014 

Page 6 

Aquatic Center), and the visit by the Chief of Naval Operations to Kings Bay Naval Base.  

Mayor Morrissey mentioned the national exposure St. Marys is receiving from Atlantic 

Magazine now Atlantic.com for the 2014 Mardi Gras Festival and the positive interviews given 

by various residents. Mayor Morrissey mentioned legislation being considered by the President 

regarding Flood Insurance and FEMA.  Mayor Morrissey briefly spoke about the upcoming bid 

for ferry service to Cumberland Island and Florida’s desire to service Cumberland Island as well.  

            

GRANTING AUDIENCE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

Dave Schmitz, 112 New Hammock Circle:  Mr. Schmitz asked Council to be active 

participants regarding Florida’s desire to access Cumberland Island and syphon water 

from the river.      
 

Christopher Thurner, 202 West Bryant:  Mr. Thurner commented on the history between 

Cumberland Island, Amelia Island and Florida. 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Councilmember Williams briefly spoke about Redevelopment Powers.  Councilmember Nutter 

mentioned that Up the Creek Expedition is offering free kayak use to those assisting with St. 

Marys River Clean-up by water on Friday, March 21, 2014 from 12:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m.  

Councilmember Nutter also gave a brief overview of Flood Insurance rates and legislation.   
 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
    
*ST. MARYS INTRACOASTAL GATEWAY PROPERTY SECURITY MEASURES:  Robert Horton briefly 

spoke about inappropriate activity (littering and parking) on the SMIG property March 8
th 

& 9
th

, 

2014.  Mr. Horton mentioned increased Police patrols and security measure are being reviewed. 
 

*BUDGET CALENDAR FY 2015:  Robert Horton briefly reviewed the FY 2015 Budget Calendar 

with Council. 
 

Mr. Horton gave an update on the St. Marys Senior Center vandalism incident.  Mr. Horton 

mentioned security measures review, increased Police patrols, damage assessment and repairs by 

Public Works.  Mr. Horton addressed issues with the Trolley Building and the coordinated effort 

with the Kiwanis. 
 

Mayor Morrissey gave a brief overview of the selection process for the City Manager position.  
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

There was no “Executive Session” at this time.  
 

ADJOURNMENT:  
Councilmember Colville made a motion for adjournment.  Councilmember Nutter seconded the 

motion.  Mayor Morrissey declared the meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Deborah Walker-Reed, City Clerk 
































































































































































































	Agenda
	Draft Minutes 3.17.2014
	Draft Minutes 3.31.2014
	Draft Minutes 4.3.2014
	Presentations
	Joint Proclamation-2014 Child Abuse Prevention Month
	Proclamation-Donini Florist Nursery 50 Years
	Board Appointment  Library

	New Business
	A. Mi Casa Restaurant-Cinco De Mayo Festival
	B. Ordinances-City Fire Codes
	C. Building Codes
	D. Wayfinding Signage-Encroachment Permit Application GDOT
	E. Airport Bid Award-Resolution-Crack Seal and Remark
	F. Budget Ordinance-Welcome Center
	G. Budget Ordinance-Airport Runway 13-31
	H. Budget Ordinance-Code Enforcement Position

	Reports
	Finance Direcotor's Report




